
 
 

 
 

 

11 August 2015 

 

 

To: Councillors Hunter, Hutton and Ryan  

 

The above members are requested to attend the:  

 

LICENSING PANEL 

 

Tuesday, 18 August 2015 at 11.00 am 

in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 

 

 

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN   

 

 To appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 

 
2  DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING   

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 

doing so state:- 

 

(1) the type of interest concerned 

 

(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and 

 

(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously 

considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject 

to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting. 

 

If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 

the Head Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 

(Members are asked to also pay particular attention to the guidance sheet on interests 

supplied with the agenda). 

 
3  PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING   

 

 The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal 

maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing. 

 

Public Document Pack



A. Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in 

the Meeting Room.  

B. Items 2, 3, 4(a) and 4(c) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public. 

C.         The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 

considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 

hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and 

any person assisting or representing a party) 

 
4  APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE- BELL'S CONVENIENCE  (Pages 

1 - 72) 

 

 a. APPLICATION AND REPRESENTATIONS SUBMITTED. To consider the attached report 

 

b. DETERMINATION OF THE APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE- 

Bell’s Convenience 

 

c. ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE DECISION FOR THE APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A 

PREMISES LICENCE- Bell’s Convenience 

 

 

 
 

Venue information: 

 

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 

 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory 

Manager, Tel: 01253 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk 

 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 

Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 



 

Report to: Licensing Panel 
 

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davies, Head of Licensing Services 

Date of Meeting : 

 

18
th

 August 2015 

 

APPLICATION TO REVIEW A LICENCE – Bell’s Convenience 
 

1.0 

 

Purpose of the report: 

 

1.1 

 

 

To consider an application by the Weights and Measures to review the Premises 

Licence issued in respect of Bell’s Convenience, 152 Palatine Road. 

 

2.0 

 

2.1 

Recommendation(s): 

 

The panel is requested to determine the review application. 

 

  

3.0 

 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 

 

This application must be determined by a panel. 

 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 

approved by the Council? 

 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 

budget? 

 

Yes 

3.3 

 

Other alternative options to be considered: 

 

 None, once an application for the review of a Premises Licence is received it must be 

considered by a Licensing Panel.  

 

4.0 Background Information 

 

4.1 

 

 

 

 

 

Bell’s Convenience , 151 Palatine Road Blackpool has the benefit of a premises licence 

authorising the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises Monday-Saturday 07.00 – 

22.00, Sunday 10.00 – 16.00   

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



4.2 

 

 

 

4.3 

 

 

4.4 

 

 

 

4.5 

 

 

 

4.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On 1
st
 July 2015 the Licensing Service received an application from Weights and Measures 

to review this licence on the grounds of crime and disorder, public safety and protection of 

children from harm. A copy of the application is attached. 

 

Representations in support of the application have been received from the Police, 

Licensing Authority and Health and Safety. Copies of the representations are 

attached. 

 

The licence holder at the time the review was submitted was Amer Khan. On 17
th

 July 

2015 an application was received to transfer the licence to Jeyabalan Sornalingam. 

 

Local policy considerations 

 

None 

 

National policy considerations 

 

Section 11 reviews is relevant in particular: 

11.20 – In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing 

authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the 

concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action should generally be 

directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and 

proportionate response. 

 

If a suspension or revocation is being considered 11.23 should be taken into account 

“it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result 

from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. But where premises are found to be trading 

irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, 

to take tough action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other 

measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence.” 

 

The panel have the following powers: 

1. Take no action 

2. Modify the conditions of the licence (by adding removing or varying 

conditions) 

3. Exclude a licensable activity from the licence 

4. Remove the DPS 

5. Suspend the licence for up to three months 

6. Revoke the licence. 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



4.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Observations 

 

This licence was granted in 2006 and has the following conditions endorsed: 

 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

 

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

 

a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 

the premises licence, 

 

or 

 

b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 

personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

 

2 Every supply of alcohol under the premise licence must be made or 

authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 

 

3 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure 

that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or 

supply of alcohol. The policy must require individuals who appear to the 

responsible person to be under 18 year of age (or such older age as may be 

specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule  

 

1 All staff to have received suitable training in relation to the proof of age 

scheme to be applied upon the premises. Records to evidence this will be made 

available to an authorised officer upon request. 

 

2 The Licence holder is to support and rigorously enforce Challenge 21 or similar 

company policy proof of age policy. 

 

Any person who looks or appears to be under the age of 21 shall be asked to 

provide identification that they are over the age of 18.  The following are the 

only forms of identification acceptable: - 

 

i. UK photo driving licence 

ii. Passport 

iii. Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card 

 

3 The premises are to be equipped with a closed circuit television system, which 

Page 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

is appropriate to its purpose and provided and maintained to the satisfaction of 

enforcement Authorities. 

 

4 A clear, legible and conspicuous notice requesting patrons to avoid causing 

noise, nuisance or disturbance to local residents shall be displayed at every 

exit. 

 

5 Access of spirits will be restricted to the secure staff area and sale and supply 

will be by assistant only. 

 

6 The premises are operated in accordance with the principles outlined by the 

‘Nightsafe’ Initiative, as are relevant to those premises, and indicated in the 

associated leaflet. 

 

7 The wall between the shop and 149 Palatine Road shall be soundproofed. 

 

8 Litter bins are to be provided by the licence holder. 

 

4.8 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 

No 

4.9 List of Appendices:  

  

Appendix 4a: Application 

Appendix 4b: Representation from Lancashire Constabulary 

Appendix 4c: Representation from the Licensing Authority 

Appendix 4d: Representation from Health and Safety 

 

 

5.0 Legal considerations: 

 

5.1 

 

Please see local and national policy in the background information. 

 

6.0 Human Resources considerations: 

 

6.1 

 

None 

 

7.0 Equalities considerations: 

 

7.1 

 

None 

 

8.0 Financial considerations: 

 

Page 4



8.1 

 

None 

 

  

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 

 For Office use only 

 
 

LalPac Application 
No. 

 

 

 
 

 

Licence Number 
PL1622 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Blackpool will be a Vibrant, Inclusive,                   
Healthy, Safe and Prosperous Town  

 
 

LICENSING SERVICE 
 

 
APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

OR CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

Review requested by: 
 

Weights and Measures 

Page 7



LS/F/005/12/1 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are 
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. You may wish to keep a copy of the 
completed form for your records. 

 
 

I 
 

Glen Phoenix of Blackpool Weights and Measures Department 

[insert name of person requesting review] 
 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 or apply for the review of a club 
premises certificate under section 87, of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described 
in part 1 below. 

Part 1 – Premises Details  

 
 

Postal address of premises or club premises if any, or if none the ordinance survey map reference or description. 
 
 

Premises Name 
and Address 

Bell’s Convenience,  
 

151 Palatine Road  
 

Blackpool  Post Code F Y 1  4 D N 

 

 

State the Name of the premises licence holder or the name of the club holding the club premises 
certificate (if known) 
 

Amer Khan 
 

 

Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate Reference Number (if known) 
 

PL1622 

 
Part 2 – Applicant details 
 
I am: 

             Please tick 
 

1)  an interested party (please also complete sections 2A or 2B below) 
 

 

 

 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 
 

 

 

 

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 
 

 

 

 

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 
 

 

 

 

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 
premises 

 

 

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please also complete 2C below) 
 

x 

 

  

Page 8



LS/F/005/12/1 

3) a member of a club to which this application relates (also complete section 2A below)  
 

 
 
(2A) Individual Applicants (fill in as applicable) 
                        Please tick 

Title:  Mr Mrs Miss Ms 
Other 

I am 18 years 
old or over 

Yes No 

   

 

Forenames  Surname  

 

Home address 

 
 

 
 

 Post Code 
       

 

Telephone  
Number  

Mobile  
Number 

 

 

E-Mail 
Address  
 

(2B) Other Applicant or Representing Body  
 

Name  

 

Address 

 
 

 
 

 Post Code        

 

Telephone  
Number 

 

  

E-Mail 
Address 

 

 

(2C) Responsible Authority applicant 
 

Name Glen Phoenix of Blackpool Weights and Measures Department 

 

Address 

 
Number One, Bickerstaffe Square, Talbot Gateway, Talbot Road, 

 
Blackpool 

Lancashire Post Code F Y 1  3 A H 

 

Telephone  
Number 01253 478381 

 

Page 9



Page 10



LS/F/005/12/1 

Designated Premise Supervisor hasn’t been overseeing the day to day running of business; 

or that there has been a significant or prolonged absence of any responsible persons from 

the licenced premises and a lack of respect for the licensing objectives. 

  

In respect of the failed test purchase, it is an offence to sell alcohol to a person under the age of 18 

years by virtue of Section 146 of the Licensing Act 2003. A person guilty of an offence under this 

section is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale.  

 

Circumstances  

 

On the 17th April 2015 at 17:38 a 16 year old male volunteer purchased 10 bottles of Carlsberg for 

£7.25 from Sornalingam Jeyabalan, an employee of Amer Khan. Jeyabalan was cautioned following 

the sale and issued with a Notice of Alleged Offence. (Jeyabalan gave Khan’s name as the 

proprietor/representative).  

 

On the 18th May 2015, I wrote to Amer Khan at the shop and his home address inviting him to attend 

an Intervention Meeting on the 1st June 2015. During the Interim Period I didn’t receive a response 

from Mr Khan or his representatives suggesting that the business had changed ownership. 

 

On the 1st June 2015, Sornalingam Jeyabalan (the Seller) accompanied by Siuakuman Sivatharsan 

(friend) attended the meeting, Jeyabalan explained that he had purchased the business from Amer 

Khan during December 2014 and produced a number of documents allegedly supporting his claim. 

The seller was adamant that he had purchased the business from Khan claiming to have further 

documentary evidence to prove the transfer of ownership, and that he was running the business. 

 

I assume that the English isn’t Mr Jeyabalan first language, as he appeared to be confused over an 

application he’d made to London Borough of Brent for a Premise Licence which he claimed he’d not 

received.    

 

Yet when pressed over claims couldn’t explain why  

 

 on the evening of the sale he gave Khan’s as the name owner  

or  

 why his name wasn’t recorded either as the Premise Licence Holder or the Designated 

Premise Supervisor. 

 

In order to expedite the matter in regards to the seller, Sornalingam Jeyabalan accepted the offer of 

a Conditional Caution comprising of a Simple Caution.  

Page 11



LS/F/005/12/1 

  

If Khan no longer had interest in the business then the new owner has failed to obtain the relevant 

qualification or approval to be deemed Designated Premise Supervisor. 

 

Enquiry lodged with London Borough of Brent regarding Jeyabalan’s Personal Licence application 

(awaiting response) 

 

In either case, the events that have taken place strongly suggest that there is a negligent relaxed 

approach to the premises licence and the licensing objectives, highlighted further by the fact that 

Amer Khan remains the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premise Supervisor when 

allegedly he has no further interest in the premise.   

 

In support of this application I include the following documents which consist primarily of the 

premises licence and the evidence gathered by PPO Steven Ash into the offences under the 

Licensing Act 2003 and documents provided to PPO Shaun McKinney during the subsequent 

Intervention Meeting. 

 

Documents attached 
 
Document 1 – Statements supporting the underage prosecution report 
 
Document 2 – Signed Simple Caution  
 
Document 3 – Documents provided during the Intervention Meeting 
 
Document 4 – Copy of Closure Order s 169(A) 5/08/11 
 
Document 5  - Premise Licence PL 1622 
 
 
 
 
 
Please provide as much information as possible to support the application.  Continue on a separate 
sheet if necessary.  (Please read guidance note 2 before completing) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



LS/F/005/12/1 

Document 1 – Witness statement of PPO S Ash 

Page 13



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 14



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 15



LS/F/005/12/1 

Simple Caution 

Page 16



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 17



LS/F/005/12/1 

Document 4 – Documents provided during the Intervention 

Page 18



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 19



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 20



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 21



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 22



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 

Page 23



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 24



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 

Page 25



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 

Page 26



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 27



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 28



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 29



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 30



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 31



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 32



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 33



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 34



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 35



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 
 

Page 36



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 

Page 37



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 38



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 39



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 40



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 41



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 42



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 
 

Page 43



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

Page 44



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 45



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 
1  

Page 46



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
1 
 

Page 47



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 
1 

Page 48



LS/F/005/12/1 

 

 
 

Page 49



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 50



LS/F/005/12/1 

  

Page 51



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 52



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 53



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 54



LS/F/005/12/1 

 
 
 

Page 55



LS/F/005/12/1 

Document 4 Copy of Closure Order (5/08/11) 

Page 56



LS/F/005/12/1 

There is a history associated with this premise: - During August 2011 a 48 hr Closure Notice for 
persistently selling alcohol to Children was imposed. There has been a history relating to operational 
side of the business Amer Khan was both the Premise Licence and Designated Premises 
Supervisor during this period   

Page 57



LS/F/005/12/1 

Part 4 – Other relevant information
 Please tick 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before? 
Yes No 

x 

Day Month   Year 

If yes please state the date of that application 

If you have made representations before relating to this premises, please state what they 
where and when you made them. 

During August 2011 the Premise was served a 48 hr Closure Notice for persistently selling alcohol 
to Children. Mr Amer Khan was both the Premise Licence and Designated Premises Supervisor on 
this occasion.  

       Please tick 

I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the 
premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate. 

x 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be 
rejected x 

Page 58



LS/F/005/12/1 Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Blackpool Council Licensing Service 
 

Representation made by a Responsible Authority  
 

Responsible Authority  

Name of Responsible Authority Licensing Authority 

Name of Officer    (please print) Mark Marshall 

Signature of Officer  

Contact telephone number 01253-478493 

Date representation made 27 07 2015 

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate YES NO 

Premises Details 

Premises Name Bells Convenience 

Address 151 Palatine Road  

 Blackpool 

  

  

Post Code FY1 4DN 

Details of your representation (Please refer and attach any supporting documentation) 

I am Mark Marshall and am duly authorised to submit representations on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority. 
 
On the 15th June 2015 a Licensing Enforcement Officer visited the premises and had concerns 
regarding the appointed DPS who was absent from the premises, other technical licensing issues 
were also disclosed, such as no summary on display, no certified copy of the licence and partially 
obscured or inadequate notices regarding minimisation of noise to residents. 
An advisory letter was sent to Mr Amer KHAN, the licence holder at the time on the 23rd June 2015. 
 
On Friday 17th July 2015 Mark Marshall, Licensing and Health and Safety Manager met with the new 
operator of Bells Convenience, Mr  Jeyabalan SORNALINGAM and Gunaratnam KETHEES who 
arranged the meeting with me and was there to facilitate communication as Mr SORNALINGAM had 
very poor English language skills. 
 
During the meeting it was apparent that Mr SORNALINGAM had been the owner of the shop since 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 67



January 2015, he didn’t really understand the requirement to transfer the licence so during the 
meeting I assisted him by completing the forms for transferring the DPS and the Premises Licence 
into his name. 
It was very apparent from his character and lack of competence that Mr SORNALINGAM would be a 
concern if left to run this shop without assistance, it was very much accepted by all parties that Mr 
SORNALIGAM capabilities had limitations, I suggested that perhaps ordering stock, arranging displays, 
back office management would be ok but if he was left to do the operational day to day running of 
the premises I would be concerned. I suggested that he needed some assistance in the form of a shop 
manager; someone who understood the issues in the area could speak English fluently and had a 
stronger bearing. 
The transfer and change of DPS was submitted on the same day so the intentions of Mr SORNALIGAM 
are clearly honourable but many of the issues here such as the underage sale, technical licensing 
breaches and the fact that the licence was not transferred for over 6 months are in my view down to 
operator incompetence and the need for a competent manager is essential in this case. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For New / Variation Applications only. 
It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is amended, or if 
conditions are applied, as detailed below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 68



Blackpool Council Licensing Service 
 

Representation made by a Responsible Authority  
 

Responsible Authority  

Name of Responsible Authority Health and Safety 

Name of Officer    (please print) Gareth Shaw 

Signature of Officer G Shaw 

Contact telephone number 478315 

Date representation made 02 07 2015 

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate  No 

Premises Details 

Premises Name Bells Convenience Store 

Address 151 Palatine Road 

 Blackpool 

 Lancashire 

  

Post Code FY1 4DN 

Details of your representation (Please refer and attach any supporting documentation) 

A visit to this premise on the 15th of June revealed the following issues; 
 

1) A smashed socket in the shop area next to drinks live at >200Volts and a cable routed across 
a traffic route without any physical protection. 

 
 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 69



 
2) Cabling that requires further investigation. 

 
 

3) In addition to the above the premise was in a very poor state of cleanliness. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 70



The electrical socket was made safe by isolating at the consumer unit and a prohibition notice served 
to prevent use until made safe. 
 
In addition to the prohibition notice improvement notices were served for an electrical condition report, 
PAT testing and cleaning of the premise. 
 

 
 
 
A further visit was carried out to check compliance with the prohibition notice on the 1st of July 2015 
and it was found to have been temporarily repaired with Sellotape and Gaffa tape and put back into 
action. There was still a large whole to the underneath of the socket exposing live electrical 
connections at >200Volts 
 
The socket was again made safety by isolating at the consumer unit and this will now be reported for 
consideration of prosecution. 
 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 71



 
 
 
Mr Jeyabalan who was present during both visited stated as I was leaving that he was going to close 
the business as it was not making any money and that Blackpool council were too strict. 

 

 
 
 

 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 72


	Agenda
	4 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence- Bell's Convenience
	Appendix 4a Bells Convenience W&M review app redacted
	Bells Convenience review amended page 3
	Bells Convenience W&M review app 010715

	Appendix 4b Bells Convenience Review Police supporting representation redacted
	Appendix 4c Bells Convenience review Licensing Authority (MM) representation 270715
	Blackpool Council Licensing Service
	Representation made by a Responsible Authority 
	Responsible Authority 
	Licensing Authority
	01253-478493
	2015
	07
	27
	NO
	YES
	Do you consider mediation to be appropriate
	Bells Convenience

	Appendix 4d Bells Convenience Review H&S supporting rep 020715
	Blackpool Council Licensing Service
	Representation made by a Responsible Authority 
	Responsible Authority 
	Health and Safety
	G Shaw
	478315
	2015
	07
	02
	No
	Do you consider mediation to be appropriate
	Bells Convenience Store





